
            he State House is open every day from 
          9:00 a.m. - 5:00 p.m., except Christmas and 
New Years Day. 

We apologize that the 18th century rooms are not open at 
this time. They will reopen in late 2014 and will include 
new exhibits, including interactive displays, relating to the 
historic events that took place here in 1783-84. 

For more information about the State House and the
restoration work that is going on, please visit the 
website http://msa.maryland.gov/msa/mdstatehouse/
html/home.html. 
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Maryland State House Facts
u	 Capitol of the United States, November 1783 – 
	 August 1784
u	 America’s first peacetime capitol
u	 Oldest state house in America still in continuous 
	 legislative use 
u	 Declared a National Historic Landmark in 1960, 
	 the first state house in the nation to be given 
	 such designation

18th Century Building
u	 Date of construction: 1772 – 1779
u	 Architect: Joseph Horatio Anderson
u	 Builder: Charles Wallace 
u	 Square footage: 120,900 square feet
u	 Height of dome, exterior to weather vane: 181 feet
u	 Height of dome, interior: 113 feet

20th Century Annex
u	 Date of construction: 1902 – 1905
u	 Architect: Baldwin and Pennington

The Dome
When the State House was first completed, it had a 
leaky copper roof and a cupola that was thought by 
many to be too small for the building. In 1784, work 
was begun on a new roof and a larger dome, the one 
that is such a distinctive part of the Annapolis sky-
line to this day. The architect for the new dome was 
Joseph Clark who may have gotten his inspiration 
from a tower in Karlsruhe Germany. The exterior 
of the new dome was completed by 1787 but it took 
almost another 10 years for the interior, with its 
beautiful plasterwork, to be finished. 

The Old Treasury Building
The Old Treasury Building on State Circle was 
built in 1735-36 as a treasury for the Commissioners 
for Emitting Bills of Credit. It is the oldest public 
building in Annapolis and is currently undergoing 
extensive historical investigation and restoration 
work. When the work is complete, the building 
will be open to the public with exhibits relating 
to early Maryland history, including the first capital 
at Historic St. Mary’s City.

Photographs of State House and Dome by Jay Baker, 
Governor’s Press Office.
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The Old Senate Chamber
The Old Senate Chamber is one of the most significant
rooms in the nation. It was here that the Congress met 
from November 26, 1783 to August 19, 1784. During 
that time, three historic events occurred in this room: 
u	 George Washington resigned his commission as 
	 commander-in-chief of the Continental Army on 
	 December 23, 1783; 
u	 The Treaty of Paris was ratified on January 14, 1784;
u	 Thomas Jefferson was appointed to join Benjamin 
	 Franklin and John Adams in Paris as a minister to 
	 negotiate commercial treaties with European nations. 

In 2007, moisture damage necessitated the removal of the 
early 20th century plaster from the walls of the Old Senate
Chamber. This revealed “ghosts” of the original woodwork
in the 18th century brick walls and led architectural 
conservators to undertake a complete above ground 
“archaeology” of the room. This architectural evidence,
combined with new archival and historical documentation,
is informing the current restoration of the room, which 
is scheduled to be completed in late 2014. 

The Senate Committee Room  
and The Stairwell Room 
These two rooms are also part of the 18th century 
State House. The Stairwell Room has two staircases: 
one to the Ladies’ Balcony (not open to the public) 
and one that used to go up to the second floor. 

The Archives Room
This room was originally used for storage of Chancery 
Court records and in 1838 was made into a fireproof 
room with a brick floor for the safe keeping of the 
permanent records of the state. 

The Rotunda
Rising 113-feet from the floor, the rotunda is capped by 
an inner dome whose construction dates to the late-
eighteenth century. 

The current appearance of the rotunda, including 
the flooring, columns, and pilasters, largely dates to 
1881. Extensive renovations in 1948 replaced most 
of the interior plasterwork, stabilized the interior 
architecture, and added the white paint finishes.

The State House in the  
19th Century
Until 1905, the two rooms once known as the Calvert
and Silver Rooms were the home of the House of 
Delegates which was decorated in a high Victorian style. 
Work is now underway to re-create this 19th century 
space in order to provide a place for interpretation of 
the events of the 19th century, as well as a space that 
can be used for public events and functions. 

The Twentieth Century Annex
By the turn of the 20th century, the State House 
needed major repairs, updating and expanding. 
The Baltimore architectural firm of Baldwin and 
Pennington was hired to design and carry out the 
changes. It was decided to remove two 19th century 
additions and replace them with one large annex.  

This work was completed in 1905 and both of the 
Senate and the House of Delegates moved into their 
grand, marble lined chambers and suites that included 
offices for the president and the speaker and retiring 
lounges for the members.  Galleries for the public and 
the press were provided, and the unusual marble for 
both chambers was chosen to reflect the red and gold 
of the Maryland state flag. The skylights are all by 
Tiffany & Company.

A black marble line in the floor of the Rotunda marks 
the dividing line between the “old” and the “new” 
State Houses. 

The Senate Chamber
The Senate Chamber features portraits of Maryland’s 
Four Signers of the Declaration of Independence 
(Clockwise around the room):
William Paca (1740-1799) by John Beale Bordley, 1836.
Thomas Stone (1743-1787) by John Beale Bordley, 1836. 
Charles Carroll of Carrollton, (1737-1832), by 
Thomas Sully, 1834. Carroll was the only Roman 
Catholic signer of the Declaration of Independence. 
Samuel Chase (1741-1811) by John Beale Bordley, 1836. 

The House of Delegates Chamber
This room is a re-creation of the chamber as it appeared
in 1876-1905. The Victorian style decoration was the 
work of Baltimore architect George A. Frederick. This 
re-creation was completed in 2012 and is based on 
historic photographs and documents in the collections 
of the Maryland State Archives.

State House Memorials
There are many memorials and plaques in the State House
and on the grounds. Most notable is one honoring 
Matthew Henson, an African American explorer who 
was first man to reach the North Pole during the 1909 
Arctic Expedition of Admiral Robert Edwin Peary.  

On the grounds is a 
memorial tree honoring 
the Reverend Martin 
Luther King, Jr. 
It was planted on 
January 12, 1984 in 
commemoration of 
Dr. King’s birthday and 
rededicated on February 28, 2007 with a new plaque. 

On Lawyers’ Mall is a memorial to Thurgood Marshall 
designed and created by Toby Mendez which features
a statue of Marshall as a young lawyer and three other 
statues representing legal milestones in Marshall’s 
long career as a civil rights lawyer. One is of Donald 
Gaines Murray, the first African American to be 
admitted to the University of Maryland School of Law, 
and the other two are school children representative 
of Brown vs. the Board of Education. 

The Maryland State House is the third 
state house to be built on State Circle. 

It was begun in 1772 and first used in 1779.
The architect was Joseph Horatio Anderson 

and the builder was Charles Wallace. 

America’s First Peacetime Capitol
The Maryland State House was the first peacetime 
capitol of the United States. The Continental Congress 
met there from November 1783 until August 1784. 
On December 23, 1783, General George Washington 
came before Congress to resign his commission as 
commander-in-chief of the Continental Army, thus 
setting a precedent of the authority of the civilian 
government over the military that remains at the 
foundation of American government to this day. 

Two weeks later, on January 14, 1784, Congress 
ratified the Treaty of Paris, officially ending the 
Revolutionary War. 

In 2007, the state of 
Maryland purchased 
Washington’s personal 
copy of his resignation 
speech and it will be 
on display in the State 
House when the new 
exhibits are installed. 

Washington Resigning 
His Commission 

by Edwin White, 1858

The Maryland State House in 1788 by Charles Willson Peale.
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